HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD
HAVANT
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX
Telephone:
Fax:
Website:

023 9247 4174
023 9248 0263
www.havant.gov.uk

ANNUAL COUNCIL / MAYOR MAKING AGENDA
Membership:

Councillor (Mayor)

Councillors Bains, Bowerman, Bowdell, Crellin, Denton, Fairhurst, Guest, Jenner,
Inkster, Howard, Hughes, Keast, Kennett, Linger, Lloyd, Milne, Moutray, Munday,
Patel, Patrick, Payter, Pike, Raines, Rennie, Redsull, Richardson, Robinson,
Satchwell, Sceal, Scannell, Mrs Shimbart, Stone, Thain-Smith, Tindall, Turner,
Wade, Weeks and Wilson

Meeting:

Annual Council / Mayor Making

Date:

Wednesday 18 May 2022

Time:

11.00 am

Venue:

Hurstwood Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road,
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX

The business to be transacted is set out below:
Kim Sawyer
Interim Chief Executive
10 May 2022
Contact Officer:

Jenni Harding 023 92446234
Email: jenni.harding@havant.gov.uk

Page

1

To Elect a Member of the Council to be Mayor of the Borough
To elect a Member of the Council to be Mayor of the Borough. The
newly elected Mayor will make a declaration of acceptance of office,
take the chair and be free to address the Council.

2

Vote of Thanks to Last Year's Mayor and Reply

3

Appointment of Deputy Mayor
To appoint a Member of the Council to be Deputy Mayor, who will
then make a declaration of acceptance of office.

4

Discharges and Appointments of Trustees
To make discharges and appointments of Trustees of the Mayor of
the Borough of Havant Appeal fund Charitable Trust following the
election of Mayor.

5

Appointment of Leader
To elect a Leader of the Council in accordance with Part 2 of the
Council’s Constitution.

6

Committee Appointments

To Follow

Recommended that the Council:
(i)

Notes the political balance of the Council, as set out in
Appendix A;

(ii)

Notes the appointments made to the Cabinet by the Leader of
the Council as set out in Part A of Appendix B

(iii)

Receives notification from the Leader of the Council that
unless and until the Leader of the Council otherwise directs,
the Cabinet, being the body which will undertake the relevant
functions and powers set out in Part 3 of the Constitution of
Havant Borough Council, will undertake all those functions
and powers by acting together, save that, where Cabinet
functions have been delegated to individual members of the
Cabinet in accordance with the Scheme of Delegations to
Cabinet Leads set out in Part 3B of the Constitution and/or to
officers in accordance with the Scheme of Delegations to
Officers set out in Part 3G of the Constitution, those
delegations will continue to have effect.

(iv)

Reviews the representation of the different political groups on
each of the Committees and Boards set out in Appendix B
and determines:
(a)

(b)

(iv)

the allocation of seats on each of those bodies to
each of the political groups into which the Council is
divided and
the membership of those bodies in accordance with
the wishes of those groups; and

Approves:
1
2
3

the appointment and functions of the various
Committees and Boards
the appointment of Councillors to those Committees
and Boards
the appointment of Chairs and Vice-Chairs (as
ii

4

(v)

7

appropriate) to those Committees and Boards all as
set out in Parts B and C of Appendix B;
All appointments at (iv)(1) to (3) to remain in place
until the next Annual meeting of the Council;

Approves the sundry appointments set out in Part D of
Appendix B, all such appointments to remain in place until the
next Annual meeting of the Council.

Apologies for Absence
To receive and record any apologies for absence.

8

Declarations of Interests
To receive and record any declarations of interest.

9

Senior Management Structure Update

10

Motions Received under Standing Order 14

1 - 32

The below motion, signed by Councillor Alex Rennie and Councillor
Pam Crellin, has been submitted in accordance with Standing Order
14:
This Council resolves to:

11



Ask that the Monitoring Officer keeps a record of the
appointment of Town Crier



Move that Cllr Rosy Raines be appointed to the honorary role
of Town Crier for the Borough of Havant for the duration of Her
Majesty’s Jubilee Celebrations and for other significant events
in the future.



Request that the Town Crier proclaims to the Borough Her
Majesty’s Platinum Jubilee on Thursday 2 June 2022

Minutes

33 - 36

The minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 13 April 2022 be
taken as read and signed as a true record.

iii

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE,
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6231
Internet
This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk
Public Attendance and Participation
Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and
observe the meetings. Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to
make deputations on matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this
procedure and for further information please get in touch with the contact
officer for this agenda.
Disabled Access
The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled.
Emergency Procedure
Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will
sound.
PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO
No Smoking Policy
The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets.
Parking
Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park
opposite the Plaza.

iv

Public
Service
Plaza

v

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
NON EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
COUNCIL

DATE 18th May 2022

Senior Management Restructure
Report by Interim Chief Executive as Interim
Head of Paid Service
FOR NOTING AND DECISION

Key Decision: No
Report Number: HBC/050/2022

1.0

2.0

Purpose of Report
1.1

For the Chief Executive to notify Council of a change to the
senior management structure and update on progress to
recruitment to the structure

1.2

To bring to the attention of Council the recommendation made
by HR Committee upon 27th April 2022 regarding the
appointment of the Interim Chief Legal Officer & Monitoring
Officer

1.3

To set out a recommendation to Council for the designation of
“s.151 Officer”.

Recommendation
That:
a) To note the Chief Executive’s report submitted in accordance
with the statutory requirement placed upon the Chief Executive
as Head of Paid Service is noted.
b) In accordance with Section 5 of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989, Committee recommends to full Council that
they appoint Mr Mark Watkins as Interim Chief Legal Officer &
Monitoring Officer until such time as a permanent appointment
has been made
c) In accordance with Section 151 of the Local Government Act
1972, full Council designates Mr Malcolm Coe as interim s.151

Page 1

Officer until such time as a permanent appointment has been
made.
3.0

Executive Summary
3.1

On 13 April 2022 the Chief Executive brought a report to Council
on proposals for a senior management structure for consultation
with staff.

3.2

Consultation began on 20 April following the Bank Holiday
weekend and concluded on 28 April 2022. The Chief Executive
engaged with senior managers across Havant Borough Council,
the Budget Working Group and Unison to discuss the proposals.
It is intended to bring a report to the Scrutiny Committee early in
the new civic year.

3.3

In response to the proposals received during the consultation,
the Chief Executive:
•
•

4.0

revised the structure; and
extended the period of consultation until 6 May to take
further views from senior managers on the revised
structure

3.4

No further comments were received and the consultation has
now formally closed.

3.5

The Chief Executive is asking that Council notes the revised
structure at Appendix 1 and the explanation for the revisions to
the structure at Appendix 2.

3.6

The Chief Executive will now move to recruit to the senior
management positions by conducting informal interviews with
those senior officers who have expressed an interest in applying
for one or more roles.
Subject to the Chief Executive
considering those applicants suitable, she will propose them for
formal interview by the HR Committee.

3.7

Any vacant roles will be subject to external recruitment, which
will commence immediately.

Background and relationship to Corporate Strategy and/or
Business Plans
4.1

This structure meets the requirements of ‘A responsive and
commercial council’. The senior management structure is
designed to meet the needs of the Corporate Strategy and
provide a team to work with residents, businesses and the
community groups to make resident demand led Council.

Page 2

4.2

On 26th of January 2022 Havant Borough Council resolved “To
agree to withdraw from the Joint Management Team Agreement
subject to a business case being reported to the next meeting of
the Council exploring the risks, issues, benefits, and costs of the
withdrawal…”

4.3

At February Council, Members approved the outline business
plan for the delivery of the preferred option as set out in the
Options Appraisal and Business Case, within which is contained
the Havant Borough Council Business Plan. Section 2 of that
Plan deals with Leadership Capacity and Organisation Design
and states: “A key aspect of the preferred option of a standalone
council is the desire to enhance leadership capacity to deliver
corporate objectives. The Council has already appointed an
Acting [now Interim] Chief Executive and…. more immediately,
the Acting CEO will employ a temporary…. [sole] s.151 officer &
Monitoring Officer as swiftly as possible to fulfil the Council’s
statutory obligations.”

4.4

As part of the proposed structure of the new Senior
Management Team, the Interim Chief Executive as Head of Paid
Service requires a Chief Finance Officer who will also undertake
the statutory role of s.151 Officer and also a Chief Legal Officer
who will also undertake the statutory role of Monitoring Officer.

4.5

The statutory roles of s.151 Officer and that of Monitoring Officer
for Havant Borough Council have recently been vacated.

4.6

On 27th April 2022 Human Resources Committee sat and:
4.6.1 appointed Mr Malcolm Coe as Interim Chief Finance
Officer; the statutory designation normally associated with
that role being reserved to Council; and
4.6.2 recommended the appointment of Mr Mark Watkins as
Monitoring Officer – see the Report attached at Appendix
3 for detail.

5.0

Other Options considered
5.1

The Council has already made the decision to pursue a
standalone council model. This standalone structure is within
the budget available for the shared management structure. It
therefore meets the requirements for a well-run, financially
viable Council which is mindful of public funds.

5.2

Council could propose changes to the senior management
structure and members are invited to make any comments in
advance or during debate on the proposed structure. The Chief

Page 3

Executive will take these into account and make any
adjustments as required.
6.0

Implications
6.1

Budgetary and Resources:
6.1.1 Any interim posts will be met within existing budgets,
including the designated financial reserve for transitional
costs.
6.1.2 This structure is, potentially, a marginal increase on the
budget for the shared management team. This structure
therefore provides Havant Borough Council with a
dedicated senior management team without increasing
the financial burden of the Council.
6.1.3 The Council will incur recruitment costs in advertising and
recruiting to these roles. Given the seniority of these
roles, an external recruitment agency will be employed to
assist with the recruitment.
6.1.4 As a term of the JMTA any recruitment costs incurred as
a result of the exit from the JMTA will be shared with East
Hampshire District Council.
Section 151 Officer comments
Date: 10 May 2022

6.2

i.

The proposed Management structure is affordable within
the proportionate share of the Joint Management Team
budget that Havant Borough Council is anticipating to
receive.

ii.

Depending on the starting salary of successful candidates,
there could be a marginal overall cost increase which will
need to be accounted for as further structures are
developed across the council.

iii.

Any one-off costs, such as advertisement and recruitment,
will be charged against the HBC Transition Reserve with
overall spend reported back through 2022/23 budget
monitoring to Committee.

Human Resources Implications
All Havant employees who were affected by these proposals
have been consulted regarding the proposed changes to the
structure. Of those employees who have been displaced by this
structure, one has applied for voluntary redundancy, one has put

Page 4

an expression of interest forward to be interviewed for two roles.
One employee is a direct match for a role in the structure and is
slotted into that role. A further expression of interest has been
received from an employee at East Hampshire District Council.
6.3

Legal Implications:

6.4

The council will ensure that that employment procedures are
followed as appropriate regarding any employment law issues
arising from this report

6.5

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires local
authorities to make arrangements for the proper administration
of their financial affairs and appoint a S151 Officer for this
purpose and to have responsibility for those arrangements.

6.6

It is a statutory requirement contained within s5 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 to appoint a monitoring
officer
Monitoring Officer comments:
i.

The Head of Paid Service is responsible for the corporate
direction and management of the council and for
allocating responsibility for service groupings to strategic
executives.

ii.

Under sub-section 4(3) of the Local Government &
Housing Act 1989 the Head of Paid Service may make
proposals in relation to the manner in which the discharge
of the council’s functions is co-ordinated; the number and
grades of staff required by the authority for this purpose
together with the organisation of the authority’s staff.

iii.

Any such proposals made by the Head of Paid Service
must be reported to full Council for ratification at a
meeting to be held not more than three months after the
preparation of the report.

iv.

The matters contained within this report are therefore
within the lawful authority of the Head of Paid Service

v.

Paragraph 1.1.19 of Part Two, Section B of the
Constitution confirms that the designation of an officer as
The Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer is reserved
to full Council

vi.

As regards the hiring of Chief Officers, the Constitution
also provides that any new appointments to these posts
will need to be determined by HR Committee. This will be
dealt with in accordance with the Council's normal
recruitment processes as is appropriate.

Page 5

Date: 10th May 2022

7.0

8.0

Consultation & Communication
7.1

As set out earlier in this report

7.2

The wider organisation has been kept informed of these
proposals through ‘The Fountain’, the fortnightly online
newsletter led by the Chief Executive.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Revised senior management structure
Appendix 2: Reasons for the revisions to the structure
Appendix 3: HR Committee Report dated 27th Apr 22
Agreed and signed off by:
Monitoring Officer: Mark Watkins, 10 May 2022
Section 151 Officer: Malcolm Coe, 10 May 2022
Contact Officer:
Job Title:
E-Mail:

Kim Sawyer
Interim Chief Executive
kim.sawyer@havant.gov.uk

Page 6

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
STRUCTURE

Executive Head of
Internal Services
Page 7
Statutory

CEX
support
team

Policy &
performance

Service facing

Chief Executive

Executive Head for
Coastal Partnership

Executive Head of
Place

Executive Head of
Commercial

Executive Head of
Community Relations

Public
facing

Senior management team
ADVISORY
TEAM

Page 8

Executive Head of
Internal Services

Chief Finance
Officer
Chief Legal
Officer

CORE TEAM

Executive Head of
Place

Chief Executive

Executive Head for
Coastal Partnership

Executive Head of
Commercial

Executive Head of
Community
Relations

• The senior management team provides support to the Head of Paid Service
• The senior team take a strategic view of Council delivery
• Two Executive Heads will hold Deputy CEO status within their job description

Coastal
Executive Head for
Coastal Partnership

Page 9

Business
development
team manager

Engineering
team manager

Major capital
projects team
manager

CELT team
manager

Policy team
manager

Safeguarding the best
assets within Havant and
providing an unparalleled
service to others:
• Remains unchanged
• An example of
partnership that brings
financial and delivery
excellence to the Council

Commercial
Executive Head of
Commercial
Page 10

Strategic
commissioning &
innovation

Contract
manager - Capita

Property & asset
management

Contract
manager Leisure

Contract
manager - Norse

Designing a commercial and
entrepreneurial way to work:
• Commercial opportunities
and innovation
• Client functions for
• Norse
• Capita
• Leisure provision

• Property, asset
management
• Managing business
relations supporting the
CEO

Place
Executive Head of
Place

Page 11

Planning Policy

Planning
Development
Management

Environmental
Services

Building Control

Building pride in place:
• Planning policy & CIL
• Development
management
• Building Control
• Environmental health &
environment control
• Delivering effective
statutory services

Community Relations
Executive Head of
Community Relations
Page 12

Regeneration

Preventative
services
(enforcement)

Economic &
community
development

Housing
solutions

Providing the solutions for
tomorrow’s Havant:
• Housing solutions to
homelessness, affordable
and social housing
• Multi-disciplinary
prevention enforcement
team
• Multi partner community
and leisure teams
• Economic development
aligned with community
development

Internal Services
Executive Head of Service
Internal Services

Page 13

Chief Finance Officer
Chief Legal Officer
Chief HR Officer
Democratic & elections
Mayoral

Statutory
officers

CEX
support
team

Strategy Unit
Change agenda
Policy
Performance
Project management
Insight & data

Service facing

Comprises:
Statutory officers
Chief Comms Officer
Chief Policy Officer

(direct line to CEO)

Providing effective foundations
to support the delivery of
Havant Borough Council:
• Creating agile support
services
• Provides direct support to
CEO’s statutory & political
responsibilities

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2: SENIOR MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
REASONS FOR CHANGE TO THE STRUCTURE PRESENTED TO COUNCIL IN
APRIL 2022
In April 2022 the Council confirmed that the Chief Executive would begin
consultation on a senior management structure aimed to provide a standalone
council. This followed the decision to exit the Joint Management Team Agreement
with East Hampshire District Council.
The new structure is set out at Appendix 1 to this report. The key changes to the
structure are set out in this Appendix 2.
Each of the Executive Head roles are linked below to delivery of the Corporate
Strategy, demonstrating what role they will each fulfil individually and strategically as
part of the Management Team.

Executive Head of Coastal Partnerships
Corporate Strategy theme:
A revitalised borough with infrastructure that meets
our ambitions
An environmentally aware and cleaner borough
A responsive and commercial council
There are no changes to this role. The Head of Coastal Partnerships is confirmed
into this role now as a Chief Officer to the Council and a member of the Management
Team providing guidance on the development of the organisation. The Executive
Head leads an exemplar model of service delivery that supports the provision of
services in partnership with other Councils. The importance of this service is
growing nationally and internationally.
Corporate objectives:
Progression of a flood and coastal strategy is the key objective delivered by this
Executive Head. Through this strategy the Council will ensure that it will meet future
coastal erosion risk and protect some of the more important land assets within the
Havant area. This will protect important areas such as the SSI area on Hayling
Island and the coastal defences at Langstone. The Executive Head also leads a
growing team responsible for coastal management providing an exemplar model of
partnership working to other Councils
The Chief Executive has asked the Executive Head to play a key role in supporting
the internal transformation of services. The Executive Head understands the need
for responsive service delivery and drives transformation of process to achieve that.
Executive Head of Internal Services:
Corporate Strategy theme: ‘A responsive and commercial council’

Page 15

No significant changes to this role other than to bring facilities management into the
team and to clarify the role of the Chief HR officer.
The Chief HR officer fulfils an important role support the statutory responsibility of
the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive). For this reason the Chief HR Officer is
now included within the team entitled ‘statutory officers’ with a direct reporting line to
the Chief Executive.
Corporate objectives:
The Executive Head of Internal Services will meet the Council’s objectives to reduce
the future financial challenges of the Council, to become a paperless council, to
move to a system of direct debits and support the Management Team to deliver a
transformation programme for the Council. The team works with the Budget Working
Group, the portfolio holder for Finance and the Cabinet to monitor progress against
these objectives.
In addition, the Executive Head of Internal Services will work with the Management
Team to streamline those services delivering Council services to residents and
businesses. Statutory officers are tasked with a review of the Constitution to
empower officers within the corporate governance framework, enabling a more
responsive Council.
Executive Head of Commercial Services
Corporate Strategy themes:
A responsive and commercial council
A revitalised borough with infrastructure that meets
our ambitions
A thriving local economy
Responsibility for the asset register and management of the Councils property and
estates now come within the remit of the Executive Head of Commercial. This will
allow the Executive Head to consider and recommend commercial opportunities to
Cabinet making best use of the Councils assets. The Executive Head of
Commercial Services will help to transform the Council by seeking income
generating opportunities and work with key stakeholders to maximise those
opportunities. This role will also hold responsibility for innovative thinking by
embracing good practice and using the Council’s strategic commissioning function to
ensure the Council always obtains the best value for services it secures externally.
Corporate objectives:
Working across the Management Team, the Executive Head of Commercial will
engage with landowners, occupiers and potential investors to secure business and
employment growth in the Borough, consider long term planning for the Leisure
Centre, develop an asset management strategy and review our use of community
buildings.

Page 16

In addition the Chief Executive has asked the Executive Head to engage in the
successful transformation of the Council by reviewing innovative methods of service
delivery and learning from best practice elsewhere. Opportunities for income
generation are part of the transformation of the Council as it seeks to reduce the
financial burden on residents.
Executive Head of Community Relations
Corporate Strategy themes:
A safe environment, healthier and more active
residents
A thriving local economy
A quality home for all
There were significant changes to this role. The officers within these teams are
owed a great deal of thanks for their proactive and innovative ideas. They spoke
about how Havant Borough Council can work differently with its community to
support its residents and businesses and create an attractive Borough for visitors.
The changes to the structure were based upon their enthusiastic ideas and their
support for the organisation moving to a standalone Council.
The main theme of the Corporate Strategy is to enhance the lives of residents,
businesses and visitors to the Borough. This Executive Head will play a key role
engaging with the local community to address some of the significant challenges the
Borough’s residents face. Facilitating key stakeholders to come together will build
on the obvious pride in Havant that exists in our Borough, from Leigh Park
Community School, the Havant and South Downs College, the Leisure Centre, the
Havant and Waterlooville FC and the many businesses, in particular Portsmouth
Water based in Havant, who regularly engage with us. They want to work with the
Council to make a difference. The Council can play a vital role in facilitating that
common ambition and seeking funds to invest in local projects.
Havant Borough Council is ambitious for its area. It is pursuing a Levelling Up fund
bid to transform the town centre, the High Streets Task Force are visiting in early
2023, we hold an investment fund to improve our area and other specific funds for
Leigh Park. The Council wants to make a significant difference within its community
and needs a dedicated team to achieve this.
The key changes to this team are:
(1) Economic development is combined with community development to provide
a team that works with both businesses, community groups, residents,
housing providers and other key public sector teams to provide a single
solution for the Borough’s future growth
(2) Enforcement services become ‘preventative’ in their approach to the
community. This team works with the community safety partnerships to look
for crime reduction measures, it works with residents to improve the amenity
of the area, creating a pride in where people live. Teams can take a
geographical focus on key areas within the Borough: Havant Town Centre,

Page 17

Leigh Park, Waterlooville and Hayling Island to combat issues particular to
their area.
(3) Housing will work with the DLUHC to create a housing team for the future
which recognises the huge pressure on housing within the Havant area.
Positive measure will be taken to tackle homelessness and better use made
of assets to provide more affordable housing.
(4) All services take a more partnership approach and engage with our key
partners to create multi-disciplinary teams
Corporate objectives
This team will lead community relations, working with stakeholders, residents
groups, businesses, leisure providers, health, Police, Fire and other authorities to
improve the amenity of the area. The team will seek investment for the local play
parks and open spaces, defend land from unauthorised traveller incursions, create
well-being parking permits, engage on the new Skills and Innovation Centre, engage
on the creation of the Freeport, deliver on the key priorities in our Regeneration and
Engagement Strategy, work with social housing providers to alleviate our affordable
housing problems and seek to make best use of our assets through a housing
company or joint venture. Targeted work will take place around the town centre,
Waterlooville, Leigh Park and Hayling Island.

Executive Head of Place
Corporate Strategy themes:

An environmentally aware and cleaner Borough
A safe environment, healthier and more active
residents
A thriving Borough economy
A quality home for all

In line with the Community Relations role, there were also significant changes to this
role. This new Executive Team brings together the statutory services of the Council
who share a regulatory function. These professional services are provided direct to
the public in support of the Council’s strategic objectives, however they are also
subject to regulatory requirements and its officers subject to national professional
conduct rules, which require a level of impartiality in service delivery.
Corporate objectives:
This team will begin an important year focusing on the development of the new Local
Plan which offers an opportunity to address and encompass many of the Corporate
Strategy objectives into the Plan. This team will also support the delivery of the
Climate Change Strategy and Environmental Action Plan. Providing clear and
impartial advice on how the Council can meet its objectives will be key to successful
delivery of a quality home for all and a thriving Borough economy.

Page 18

PART EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE 27th Apr 22

Appointment of Interim Chief Legal Officer & Monitoring Officer
Report by Interim Head of Paid Service
FOR DECISION

Key Decision: No

Report No.: HBC/049/2022
1.0

Purpose of Report
This report sets out the interview process for the Interim Chief Legal
Officer & Monitoring Officer and also contains a recommendation on
appointment.

2.0

Recommendation
That:
a) In accordance with Section 5 of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989, Committee recommends to full Council that
they appoint Mr Mark Watkins as Interim Chief Legal Officer &
Monitoring Officer until such time as a permanent appointment
has been made

3.0

Background
3.1

Havant Borough Council on the 26th of January 2022 resolved
“To agree to withdraw from the Joint Management Team
Agreement subject to a business case being reported to the next
meeting of the Council exploring the risks, issues, benefits, and
costs of the withdrawal…”

3.2

At February Council, Members approved the outline business
plan for the delivery of the preferred option as set out in the
Options Appraisal and Business Case within which is contained
the Havant Borough Council Business Plan. Section 2 of that
Plan deals with Leadership Capacity and Organisation Design
and states: “A key aspect of the preferred option of a standalone

Page 19

council is the desire to enhance leadership capacity to deliver
corporate objectives. The Council has already appointed an
Acting Chief Executive and…. more immediately, the Acting
CEO will employ a temporary…. [sole] monitoring officer as
swiftly as possible to fulfil the Council’s statutory obligations.”

4.0

3.3

As a result of the decision referred to in paragraph 3.1 above,
the monitoring officer role for Havant Borough Council has
recently been vacated.

3.4

As part of the proposed structure of the new Senior
Management Team for Havant Borough Council, the Acting
Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service requires a Chief Legal
Officer who will also undertake the statutory role of Monitoring
Officer. Committee is asked to recommend to full Council that
Mr Watkins be appointed as Interim Chief Legal Officer &
Monitoring Officer on an interim basis for the period of time it
takes to recruit permanently to this post.

Subject of Report

4.1

Order 89.1 of Officer Employment Standing Orders (Part Three,
Section F) (the ESOs) provides that where the council proposes
to appoint exclusively from amongst existing officers then this
Committee shall “make arrangements in connection with this
appointment”. This report sets out below what those
arrangements should be.

4.2

The above arrangements will consist of the following:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Interview by this Committee
Assessment
Recommendation (as appropriate)
Consultation with Cabinet Members
Appointment by full Council

For the convenience of Committee a Job Description for this role
is annexed at Appendix No 1. A curriculum vitae for Mr Watkins
is annexed to this report at Appendix No 2.; HR Committee will
undertake Stages 1, 2 & Stage 3; consultation (Stage 4) will be
handled by the Head of OD.
4.3

Order 87.2 of the ESOs provides that where the Council is
proposing to appoint a chief officer then the Committee shall
include at least one Cabinet member.

4.4

Attached at Appendix No 1 to this report is the Job Description
for monitoring officer.

Page 20

4.5
5.0

4.3

Attached at Appendix No 2 is the curriculum vitae for Mr Watkins

Implications
5.1

Resources: The interim post will be met within existing budgets

5.2

Legal: It is a statutory requirement contained within s5 of the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to appoint a
monitoring officer

Consultation
Discussed with the Leader & Deputy Leader

Contact Officer:
Job Title:
E-Mail:

Kim Sawyer
Acting Chief Executive
kim.sawyer@havant.gov.uk

Page 21

Appendix No 1 - Job Description

Page 22

[EXEMPT] Appendix No 2 - Curriculum Vitae

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

Monitoring Officer - MAIN DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:
Role Profile


Prepare a report to Council if it at any time it appears that any proposal, decision or omission
by the authority, by any committee, sub-committee of the authority, by any person holding
any office or employment under the authority has given rise to or is likely to or would give rise
to:

(i) contravention by the authority of any enactment or rule of law or of any code of practice made or
approved by or under any enactment; or
(ii) any maladministration or injustice under Part III of the Local Government Act 1974














Undertake the statutory responsibilities of the role in a positive way and in a manner that
enhances the overall reputation of the Council and will also safeguard, so far as is possible,
elected members and officers whilst acting in their official capacities.
Ensure that the Head of the Paid Service and the Chief Financial Officer have up-to-date
information regarding emerging issues.
Perform as an Integral member of Senior Management Team and to consult with the Head of
Paid Service and Chief Financial Officer on governance and probity issues affecting the Council
either in the context of those meetings or separately.
Responsible for all statutory requirements for member conduct.
Seek Counsel’s opinion or take appropriate action on any matter concerning the Monitoring
Officer functions.
Advise the Council on the interpretation/operation of the Council’s constitution.
Promote and maintain high standards of conduct
Provide advice on vires issues, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and policy
framework and budget issues
Review and monitor training programmes for Members of the Council
Establish and maintain registers of Members’ interests and gifts and hospitality.
Carry out the role in accordance with the Statutory Officers Protocol within the Council’s
Constitution.

Knowledge, Skills and Abilities
It is essential that the postholder meets the following.









A thorough understanding of the implications of working in a politically controlled and
democratically elected organisation and experience of working effectively with elected
members or equivalent.
Experience at a senior level dealing with Constitutional, maladministration and member
conduct/ standards issues.
Ability to present complex information/reports/correspondence in a concise and clear
manner to a range of audiences either orally or in writing.
Demonstrable experience of carrying out investigations into sensitive but serious complaints.
Possess highly developed interpersonal and influencing skills.
Ability to relate successfully to people from a wide range of social and cultural backgrounds.
Possess well developed consultation and negotiation skills.

Page 25







Demonstrate personal resilience under pressure including the ability to generate urgency in
others
without panic and to work to tight deadlines.
Able to demonstrate personal conduct, integrity and credibility that inspires confidence in
members,
employees, customers, partners and others.
Ability to attend meetings outside normal working hours on a regular basis.

Page 26

Mark Watkins Ll.B. (Hons)

- Solicitor -

EDUCATION:
1993-1996 Faculty of Law, University of
Leicester
Batchelor of Laws (Ll.B) (Honours degree)
1st Class European Law
1996-1997 Law School, University of
Glamorgan
Post Graduate Diploma in Legal Practice
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS:

Admitted as a Solicitor in October 1999

PRRSENT FIRM / ORGANISATION:

East Hants DC & Havant BC (Shared Legal Service)

HEADLINES:


Recently completed a union of two teams in to a shared legal service. Just assited in
remodelling constitutions of two authorties in order to harmonise and improve governance
arrangements. Currently implementing recommendations set out in an depth and far reaching
independent governance reivew.



A highly skilled local government manager and solicitor with previous experience as Deputy
Head of Legal, Deputy Monitoring Officer, Legal Services Manager and Principal Lawyer
within local government.



As Deputy Monitoring Officer I regualrly advise at Chief Executive and director level on the
organisation’s priorities and objectives; facilitated training to keep them up to date with
governance and legislative changes. Handled sensitive political matters; member conduct
investigations.



Strategic planner and thinker always a step ahead of the agenda while remaining focussed on
council’s key corportate goals. Skilled at analysing and solving problems



Sees the lawyer's role as one who should truly understand member and senior managemnt
needs with a practical approach to problem-solving rather than just dispensing dry legal advise



Strong leader with proven management capabilities; experienced at change management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:


I qualified as a Solicitor in 1999.



My experience covers governance, team management and leadership. My specialist practice
area is property law

Page 27



Since the summer of 2002 I have undertaken interim assignments of varying lengths. These
have been within unitary and district local authotiries and also large regional and national law
firms.

KEY SKILLS & ABILITIES:


A confident communicator who possesses a wide range of legal and management problem
solving and skills



Strong interpersonal skills



Tact & diplomacy



Empathetic and understanding



Leadership and management; able to effectively manage and developing others if required;



Relationship builder with teams, instructing officers and senior management teams



Team player



Can adapt to and promote an authority’s culture and values



Planning and organisation



Numerate; able to understand budgets, targets, profitability and forecast working time



Strong IT skills; adapts to information systems quickly; able to use case management systems
effectively



Excellent literacy skills including drafting style, attention to detail.



Strong political awareness

WORK EXPERIENCE:
Governance & Management Experience


Governance review: Assisted with a complete review of constitution and governance structure
of council. Advised on meetings procedures, scheme of delegations. Devised council codes
and protocols



Investigations: conducted and instigated member code of conduct investigations



Service Delivery: instigated change management altering the Team structutre improving
working culture resulting in improved service with a focus on performance; delivering a
shared legal service. Instigasting staff redundancies



Resource Management: successfully managing Legal Services, optimising its capability
through a restructure in to a shared service. Executing recruitment campaign and instigating
staff redundancies following restructure



Political Sensitivity and Experience: fostering of professional and trusting working
relationships with Members; instilling confidence and belief in elected body as trusted adviser

Page 28

Commercial Property


mixed use development including acquisition, disposal and complex sale agreements with
overage provisions in all commercial sectors; “lock out” & option agreements, joint venture
and landowner agreements. Compulsory purchase orders. Preparation of commercial reports
on title.



sub sales, auction and plot sales. Property finance due diligence work in retail, manufacturing,
licensing & pdevelopment sectors. Drafting charges and sub-charges. Sale and lease back
matters.



acting in host of Landlord/Tenant matters inc. drafting & negotiating leases and agreements
for lease in all sectors. Portfolio management matters, e.g. licences, assignments, surrenders
and renewals. Clients have included blue chip PLCs, regional and local government, health
trusts, lending institutions, trusts (incl SIPPS), charities and partnerships, off shore and foreign
companies and institutional pension funds.

Local Government and Planning


Drafting and negotiating s106 planning agreements



academy conversions, drafting and negotiating and completing leases and transfers



attending planning committees and regulatory committees.



Prosecuting breach of planning and HMO matters including drafting summons, collating
evidence, putting trial bundles together, attendance at court.

PREVIOUS ASSIGNMENTS OVER LAST DECADE:
Sep 2020 – present

East Hants DC & Havant BC (shared service) – Legal Services
Manager & Deputy Monitoring Officer
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT – Return assignment – see below. New work
includes review of and then implementation of new structure including
dealing with redundancies consequent upon that. Advising on equitable
settlement for council following termination of joint senior management
arrangements including legal/governance and recruitment issues.

Oct 2019 – Sep 2020

Swindon Borough Council – Principal Lawyer
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT - Legal work - oversight of big development
project work concerning council’s corporate goals often involving best
consideration, state aid and procurement issues. Management work assisted
in provision of legal and governance delivery, reenergising and reengaging
team members, reviewing team structures, 1:2:1s, rewriting job descriptions
and job averts, interviewing and appointing candidates, instigating personal
development records, recruitment of interim lawyers, devising and
implementing business continuity plan due to Covid, managed sickness
absence and HR procedure, managed homeworking policy, management and
development of solicitors and support staff including file reviews,
appraisals, mid-year reviews, training and development.

May 2019 – Sep 2019

East Hants DC & Havant BC (shared service) – Legal Services
Manager & Deputy Monitoring Officer
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT – Key aspects of role: provision of strong
leadership across the Service, supporting Chief Exec, Cabinet and Head of
Legal in translating policy objectives into corporate goals. Transforming
two teams in to one shared legal service. Developed positive relationships
with various stakeholders including Corporate Management Team,

Page 29

Members and council officers. Legal work included more complex property
work including repossession, complicated reports on title, acquisition of
local shopping mall, code of conduct complaints against Members.
Management work: Led team of 12; improving structure and service
delivery included setting KPIs and establishing targets and measures of
performance, re-engaging disengaged and demoralised team of lawyers,
instigating personal development records, assisted in producing and
implementing Service Improvement Plan, conducting 1:2:1s and instigating
and managing change management, led on Iken refresh; led on Service
response to Covid incl service continuity plan; deputising for Head of Legal;
attending and advising Cabinet etc. Recruitment of interim lawyers, writing
revised job description and adverts for permanent recruitment, interviewing
and hiring job applicants. Budget holder, management of departmental
budget; forecasting forthcoming legal spends, implementing service wide
savings
Nov 2018 – Jan 2019

Basingstoke & Deane Borough Council - Principal Lawyer
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT Return assignment - see below

Feb 2018 – Sep 2018

Ashtons Legal (Big regional Legal500 firm) – locum solicitor
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT - Multi-site acquisition of development land
from local authority. 10 sites involved; work included due diligence;
arranging termination of occupational tenancies; settling sale agreements,
transfers and deeds of overage. Other matters include commercial lease
renewals and acquisition of investment sites for clients in the charity sector.
Properties profiles are largely high value commercial sites used for
distribution, storage or manufacturing, Work involved usual due diligence
including contemplation of and reporting on multitude of occupational
leases, settling transactional documentation: sale agreement, transfers and
leases where leaseback arrangements are agreed.

Aug 2017-Feb 2018

Basingstoke & Deane Borough Council – Principal Lawyer
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT – range of landlord tenant matters including
lease renewals surrenders and assignments; tenancies at will and licences to
occupy. Provision of advice on range of matters including enforcement of
leasehold and freehold covenants, extinguishment and intensification of
easements.

Jun 2016 – July 2017

Herefordshire Council - Deputy Solicitor to the Council (Deputy Head
of Legal) LOCUM ASSIGNMENT – deputised for Head of Legal,
overseeing large legal pieces of legal work/projects, managing a team of
lawyers, work allocation, mentoring, conducting staff appraisals; managing
external lawyers, supervising and training junior staff, assisting Head in
management of departmental budget, prosecuting land related matters
including advocacy; attending Management Boards concerning various big
council projects. Assisting Monitoring Officer in her duties and caseload,
assisted in updating constitution. Personal caseload included complex
acquisitions & disposals, compulsory purchase orders and landlord/tenant
matters and planning enforcement.

Feb 2016 – Jun 2016

National Health Service, Shared Risks Department (Legal) – Team
Leader LOCUM ASSIGNMENT - Estate management brief including
taking leases, granting and taking easements, taking options over land for
future development, serving break notices etc.

June 2015 – Feb 2016

Shakespeare Martineau, Birmingham (Big National Legal500 firm) –
Assistant solicitor LOCUM ASSIGNMENT High value acquisitions,
commercial lease terminations and renewals; real estate finance work for
various bridging lenders

Page 30

Jun 2014 - Apr 2015

Gloucestershire County Council – Principal Solicitor
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT - Large scale estate management incl. lease
renewals, grants of easements, enforcing freehold covenants, disposals

Jan 2014 - Jun 2014

Stone King, Bath - Assistant solicitor
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT - Acquisition of development sites for various
SME developers incl. site set ups and more straight forward commercial
acquisitions

Sep 2013 – Jan 2014

Coles miller, Poole – locum in lieu of partner
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT - Mixture of commercial leases, acquisitions and
disposals

August 2013

Withy king, Oxford - Assistant solicitor
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT - Acquisitions and business leases

July 2010 – Apr 2013

Gloucestershire County Council - Property Solicitor
LOCUM ASSIGNMENT - Part of project re. grant of long leases to
Academy Schools; disposals and general estate management work including
easements, disposals and lease renewals

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
1
Council
13 April 2022

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
At a meeting of the Council held on 13 April 2022
Present
Councillor Raines (Mayor)
Councillors Patrick (Deputy Mayor), Bains, Branson, Briggs, Crellin, Francis,
Howard, Hughes, Inkster, Keast, Kennett, Lloyd, Lowe, Patel, Payter, Pike, Rennie,
Robinson, Satchwell, Sceal, Stone, Turner, Wade and Wilson
92

Apologies for Absence
Apologies were received from Councillors Prad Bains, Lulu Bowerman, Tony
Denton, Brenda Linger, Sarah Milne, Ian Robinson, Elaine Shimbart, Julie
Thain-Smith & Yvonne Weeks.

93

Declarations of Interests
There were no declarations on interest from members.

94

Minutes
Proposed by Councillor Branson and seconded by Councillor Howard, it was
RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous meeting of Council held on 16
March 2022 were agreed as a true record.

95

Retiring Councillors
Members spoke in acknowledgement and thanks to those Councillors that
would not be standing for another term as an Elected Member of Havant
Borough Council.

96

Public Questions under Standing Order 27.5
There were no questions from members of the public under the provision of this
standing order.

97

Cabinet/Board/Committee Recommendations

Page 33

2
Council
13 April 2022

1

Human Resources Committee – 23 March 2022
Pay Policy Statement
Councillor Howard introduced the item as Chairman of the Human
Resources Committee and proposed the recommendation.
Seconded by Councillor Crellin, it was RESOLVED that Council approved
the Pay Policy Statement 2022/23.

2

Human Resources Committee 11 April 2022
Appointment of Interim Chief Executive
The Mayor invited Mrs Kim Sawyer, Acting Chief Executive to leave the
meeting whilst the matter was considered by Council.
Councillor Howard introduced the item as the Chairman of Human
Resources Committee and proposed the recommendation.
Seconded by Councillor Crellin it was RESOLVED that Kim Sawyer, Acting
Chief Executive, be appointed as Interim Chief Executive Officer & Head of
Paid Service.
The Mayor invited Kim Sawyer to re-join the meeting and congratulated her
on the appointment.

3

Cabinet – 13 April 2022
Senior Management Structure
Councillor Rennie introduced the item as Leader of the Council and
proposed the recommendation.
Seconded by Councillor Patrick, it was RESOLVED that Council;
(i) agreed the proposed senior management structure at Appendix 1;
(ii) noted that the structure shall exclude any posts at Director level and
instead have five Executive Heads of Service who will be Chief Officers
of the Council. Role profiles are included at Appendix 2
(iii) agreed that formal consultation will begin immediately with the existing
senior managers across Havant Borough Council and East Hampshire
District Council
(iv) agreed that following consultation the Head of Paid Service take all
necessary steps, through the HR Committee to appoint to roles within
the proposed Senior Management Structure following appropriate
processes set out in the Constitution
(v) that remuneration and terms and conditions for the Executive Head of
Service roles be determined by HR Committee upon appointment to
those roles.
Page 34

3
Council
13 April 2022

98

Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23
Councillor Rennie introduced the item as Leader of the Council and proposed
the recommendation.
Seconded by Councillor Stone, it was RESOLVED that Members approved the
revised Havant Borough Council Treasury Management Strategy for 2022/23
as detailed in Appendix A.

99

Questions Under Standing Order 27.4.1
There were no questions submitted from Councillors under the provision of this
standing order.

100 Urgent Questions Under Standing Order 27.4.2
There were no urgent questions submitted by Councillors under the provision of
this standing order.
101 Acceptance of Minutes
Proposed by Councillor Branson and seconded by Councillor Sceal, it was
RESOLVED that the minutes of Committees held since the last meeting of
Council be received.
102 Special Urgent Decisions
Members NOTED the special urgency decisions.

The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm and concluded at 5.44 pm

……………………………
Chairman

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36

